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         VA.033       ABSTRACTED INFORMATION SUCH AS WILLS, DEEDS,
         MARRIAGES, POWER OF ATTORNEYS ETC.. IN DIFFERENT COUNTIES OF
         VIRGINIA BELONGING TO MEMBERS OF THE HILL FAMILIES.

         Gathered & Entered by Robert R. Hill Sr. July -October 1988.

         Source:  This data provided to me by Mrs. Margaret Lester
         Hill, Genealogist, who is researching Virginia for me,
         beginning in July 1988 and continuing thru September 1988.

                       MECKLENBURG COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         14 April 1777  The Will of WILLIAM HILL was proved; wrote
         17th November 1775. Bequest were made to James Elam, son of
         Joel and Phebe; William's sisters, Martha Loatham and
         Catherine Hill; William Hill, son of James Hill; William
         Hudson, son of Peter. (WILL BOOK 1, PAGES 223-224

         8th January 1787 The Will of WILLIAM HILL was proved; Wrote
         25th April 1786. He mentions wife Elizabeth; sons: John,
         James, William & Elisha; daughter: Frances. (WILL BOOK 2,
         PAGE 196).

         15 March 1813 The Will of JOHN HILL was proved; wrote 4th
         January 1811. Mentions his wife Elizabeth; Children: William
         Hill, Evalina, Sarah, Marshall Hill. John B. Hume. (WILL BOOK
         7, PAGES 358-359).

                       LUNENBURG COUNTY, VIRGINIA
         6th June 1758 The Inventory and appraisal of the Estate of
         RICHARD HILL, deceased. Sale of Estate, 14 June 1758. The
         bedding was purchased by Martha Hill. (WILL BOOK 1, PAGES
         239-240).

                       FRANKLIN COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         3 February 1806 The Inventory of the Estate of ISAAC HILL,
         deceased. (WILL BOOK 1, PAGE 272).  List of Heirs: Sally
         Price (David, Costello Hill, Thomas Hill, Barber Hill, Betsy
         Hill Jones (William), are all of age. Under age are Nancy
         Hill, John Hill, Isaac Hill, Winny Hill & William Hill. John
         Hill was their Guardian. (WILL BOOK 1, PAGE 409). This Family
         originated in Northumberland County, Virginia.

                       MIDDLESEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         3rd November 1684 THOMAS HILL assigned his grant of 345 acres
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         on the south side of the Rappahannock River to William
         Cheyney. (DEED BOOK P.S. 1A, Page 87).  P.S. = photostat

         21 June 1693 Power of Attorney, LEONARD HILL, merchant of
         London, "at present in Virginia," to Thomas Harwar. (DEED
         BOOK P.S. 1A, PAGE 309).  P.S.= photostat

         3rd October 1709 Bond, LEONARD HILL stated that he was 60
         years old (DEED BOOK 3, PAGE 211).  THIS INDICATES A BIRTH IN
         1649.

         5th February 1714 Deed; WILLIAM HILL & FRANCES, his wife,
         made an agreement for the equal partition of 150 acres in
         Shell Neck, land of John Needles, deceased. John Needles, the
         father of Frances, left the land to his son William Needles,
         who died without issue. (DEED BOOK 3, PAGES 510-512). WILLIAM
         & FRANCES HILL undoubtedly the parents of NEEDLES HILL;
         NEEDLES HILL Marriage Bond: Letitia Morgan, 4 October 1758,
         Middlesex County, Virginia.

         7th March 1731 Will of RICHARD HILL was proved. Wrote 18th
         January 1731/32. Mentions nephews, William, Russell, Thomas &
         Needles Hill; sister Rebecca Whitaker; brother, William Hill;
         Niece, Judith Hill; sister in law, Frances Hill; Executors,
         Roger Jones, Churchill Jones.  No Signatures of Witnesses.
         (WILL BOOK B, PART 2, PAGES 166-167).

         1760 Inventory, WILLIAM HILL, deceased. (IN WILL BOOK E, PAGE
         46).

         26 February 1776 Inventory, NEEDLES HILL, deceased, by court
         order of 24 July 1775. (WILL BOOK F, PAGE 77).

         18 June 1784 Inventory, LETITIA HILL, deceased, by court
         order of 24 March 1784. (WILL BOOK F, PAGE 282).

         30th July 1787 Mortgage; WILLIAM HILL to John Jackson for the
         land mentioned in next item. Witnesses=Dudley Vaughan, Thomas
         Boss (or Bass), John Minter. (DEED BOOK 10, PAGE 68).

         27th August 1788 Deed; WILLIAM HILL and SARAH, his wife, sold
         132 acres in Christ Church Parish, bounded by John Rose, to
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         John Jackson. No Witnesses shown. (DEED BOOK 10, PAGES 88-
         90).

         In Addition, there are numerous bonds:

         1689  Thomas Hill (Deed Book P.S. 1A, Pages 200-201). P.S. =
               photostat.
         1700  Richard Hill (Deed Book 2, Page 374) torn.
         1701  Leonard Hill (Deed Book 2, Page 399 (cannot read poor
               photostat).
         1706  Richard Hill (Deed Book 3, Page 121).
         1708  Leonard Hill (Deed Book 3, Page 188).
         1719  William Hill (Deed Book 3, Pages 499-500).
         1762  Needles Hill (Deed Book P.S. 8A, Page 354). P.S. =
               photostat
         1787  William Hill (Deed Book 10, Page 68).

                            HALIFAX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         18th November 1757  JAMES HILL'S Inventory ordered by the
         court. Recorded 16th March 1758. (WILL BOOK O, Pages 46-48).

         1768 Account of estate of JAMES HILL. Only a fragment of this
         remains. "due the orphans of James Hill...acct with Robert
         Wooding Guardian ." (WILL BOOK O. Page 339).

         1768 Account page torn at top. "___hans (ORPHANS??) of Mr.
         James Hill, decd. with______oding." The eighth item listed is
         "To pr.  Leather Breches for Jas Hill 1 (L) POUND.  (WILL
         BOOK O, Pages 342-343).

         August  1773 Account; orphans of James Hill, R. Wooding,
         guardian. (WILL BOOK 1, Page 37).

         20th April 1781 Inventory, EPHRAIM HILL, (WILL BOOK 1, PAGE
         348).

         19th December 1781 Inventory & Appraisement, Captain JAMES
         HILL, decd., taken by Benjamin Hall, Thomas Robins, Harrison
         Irby; recorded 18th July 1782. (WILL BOOK 1, Pages 407-408).

         6th August 1782 "The Estate of Captain JAMES HILL in account



file:///C|/Users/Owner/Documents/Genie/genieTexts/VA033.TXT[7/20/2010 9:22:12 PM]

         with SARAH HILL, Administrator & Guardian to the Orphans."
         (WILL BOOK 1, PAGES 412-413).

         21 August 1783 "The Estate of Captain JAMES HILL to SARAH
         HILL, Guardian." One item was "due for Schooling 2 children 6
         months, 1 pound." (WILL BOOK 2, PAGES 30-31).

         16 September 1784 Account; "Joseph Terry & Sarah his wife,
         guardians to the orphans of JAMES HILL, deceased." (WILL BOOK
         2, PAGES 93-94).

         11 August 1785 "The Estate of JAMES HILL"S orphans" Joseph
         Terry, guardian. (WILL BOOK 2, PAGE 139).

         18 October 1787 "The Orphans of JAMES HILL, decd. to Joseph
         Terry, Guardian." (WILL BOOK 2, PAGE 260).

         26th June 1797 The Will of Robert Wooding, Antrim Parish, was
         proved.  Wrote 14th May 1796. He included bequests to sons-
         in-law, James Taylor and Mary, his wife, and James Chappel
         and Martha, his wife; "loving friend"  ELIZABETH HILL and her
         daughter Frances; to THOMAS HILL, "Illegitimate son of
         ELIZABETH, my whole estate both real and personal in
         Pittsylvania County now in his possession;" Benjamin Rodgers
         who married NANCY HILL, daughter of ELIZABETH; JOHN HILL, son
         of ELIZABETH; Petersfield Kent, who married ELIZABETH HILL,
         the younger: Executor, "my natural son the said "THOMAS
         HILL." Wits: John Stanley, Moses Roberts, Thomas Roberts.
         (WILL BOOK 3, PAGES 326-329).

         (NOTE: Based on the above, it appears that Robert Wooding was

         the illigiment father of THOMAS HILL, but who was the father
         of the other Hill children)?

         28th October 1799  The Will of ELIZABETH HILL, Antrim Parish
         was proved.  Wrote 30th December 1797. (Almost anti-climactic
         after the previous item:) She mentions her sons JOHN HILL and
         THOMAS H. WOODING ("ill appears to have been erased from the
         original following the middle initial); daughters, Nancy
         Rodgers, Elizabeth Kent, Frances Williamson. Wits: John
         Wooding Sr., James Taylor, Jas. Thompson, Thomas Tuck. (WILL
         BOOK 6, PAGE 114).
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                         NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY, VIRGINIA.

         9 April 1745  Britain Hill's Will was proved this date,
         (ORDER BOOK 1743-1749, PAGE 55).

         9 March 1746/47  EZEKIEL HILL'S Will proved, written 27th
         October 1746. Mentioned his wife, Sarah Hill: Sons: SPENCER
         HILL, James Hill, Francis Hill, John Hill & Thomas Hill.
         Executors: widow and son Spencer Hill. Wits: Thomas Dameron,
         John Rice, Yarrat Hughiett. (RECORD BOOK 1743-1749, PAGE
         175a).

         Ezekiel Hill may have lived in Prince William County before
         he was in Northumberland County. William Bean sold land "on
         the line of Ezekiel Hill" (PRINCE WILLIAM COUNTY, VA. DEED
         BOOK A, 1731-1732, PAGES 140-144). Records in 1733 of Price
         William County refer to Richard Hill of London Town, Maryland
         (across South River from Annapolis), which may have been
         their home original home. (DEED BOOK B, 1732-1735, PAGES 213-
         217).

         15 August 1750 JAMES HILL'S Estate administered by Thomas
         James (ORDER BOOK 1749-1759, PAGE 75. No will found.

         13 November 1752  Sarah Hill's will proved this date, wrote
         28 July 1752. In addition to the sons named in Ezekiel's
         will, she named daughters, Winifred Hill, Sarah Hill, and
         Hannah Hill (RECORD BOOK 2, PAGE 181). Granddaughter: Martha
         Hill is also mentioned. Executors: Joseph Power, Francis
         Hill. Wits: Joseph Power, Sarah Power.

         21 November 1752  JOSEPH HILL, son of Spencer Hill & Mary,
         born. (REGISTER OF ST. STEPHEN'S PARISH).

         24 February 1754 NANCY HILL, daughter of Spencer & Mary, born
         in St. Stephen's Parish.

         15 June 1756 SPENCER HILL, son of Spencer Hill & Mary, born
         St. Stephen's Parish.

         8 August 1757 JOHN HILL and his wife, Elizabeth, sold 55
         acres to Joe Samson (RECORD BOOK 4, PAGES 106-107). John must
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         have died by 11 October 1765, because only Elizabeth Hill
         made a deed of gift to William Everit and his wife Ann.
         (RECORD BOOK 6, PAGE 660).  Elizabeth's maiden name was
         Martin. Her marriage bond to John Hill was dated 9 June 1733,
         in Lancaster County, Virginia. ("Lancaster County, Virginia
         Marriage Bonds; 1652-1850 by Ida J. Lee, Page 32).

         11 January 1758  MARY HILL, daughter of Spencer Hill & Mary,
         born St. Stephen's Parish.

         9 July 1759  Will of JOHN HILL proved; wrote 16 May 1759,
         Wife Elizabeth, sons: Thomas, William, John and Nicholas.
         Executors: Widow and friends John Pope and William Baisey.
         Wits: John Pitman, Robert Potts (RECORD BOOK 5, PAGES 87-88).

         23 March 1760 WINNY HILL, daughter of Spencer Hill & Mary,
         born St. Stephen's Parish.

         26 September 1763 MARTHA HILL, daughter of Spencer Hill &
         Mary, born in St. Stephen's Parish.

         1765 SPENCER HILL voted in Northumberland County (RECORD BOOK
         6, PAGES 643-646).

         29 June 1766  SUSANNAH HILL, daughter of Spencer Hill & Mary,
         born St. Stephen's Parish.

          3 February 1770 JUDITH HILL, daughter of Spencer Hill &
         Mary, born St. Stephen's Parish.

         12 March 1771 WILL OF SPENCER HILL proved; wrote 3 January
         1771. Mentioned his wife but did not name her. Named his
         sons, Joseph Hill and Spencer Hill. Executors: Thomas
         Downing, John Christopher, William Rice Jr. Wits: Joseph
         Power, Henry Christopher. (RECORD BOOK 8, PAGE 172).

         17 February 1779 MARY ROSS HILL, daughter of Joseph Hill &
         Ammoney, born St. Stephen's Parish.

         23 November 1782 WILLIAM HILL, son of Spencer Hill The 2nd &
         Mary, born in St. Stephen's Parish.

         9 AUGUST 1784 JOSEPH HILL'S Estate ordered to be appraised by
         John Christopher, Robert, Thomas and Henry Christopher.
         (RECORD BOOK 12, PAGES 263-264).

         11 December 1784 FANNY HILL, daughter of Spencer Hill The 2nd
         and Mary, born in St. Stephen's Parish.

         14 February 1785 WILL of WILLIAM DENNEY proved, wrote 6 April
         1784. Mentioned son; William Denney; son in law, Spencer
         Hill, daughters; Winneyfret Denney, Elizabeth Denny, Fanney
         Denney. Executors: Spencer Hill, William Denney. Wits: Jno.
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         H. Fallin, Moses Sutten, Leroy Pullin. SPENCER HILL sold the

         land he inherited from William Denney on 20th September 1785.
         (RECORD BOOK 13, PAGE 80).

         6 January 1794 JUDITH HILL marriage bond to William Lewis
         (Nottingham).

         27 November 1795 Marriage bond to MARY RUSS HILL & John Rock.
         (MARRIAGE BONDS OF NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY, VA. 1783-1850, 1929
         by Stratton Nottingham).

                             GOOCHLAND COUNTY, VIRGINIA

           General Index to Deeds, Wills Etc, Grantor, 1728-1839

         31 October 1741 FRANCIS HILL, deed to James George, (BOOK 4,
         PAGE 13).

         20 March 1743 LUKE HILL, Inventory, (BOOK 4, PAGE 340).

         20 August 1744 RICHARD HILL & CHARLES TURNBULL, deed to
         Robert Anderson, etal (BOOK 4, PAGE 414).

                 Index to Deeds, Wills, Grantees, 1728-1839

         14 August 1735 FRANCIS HILL, deed from Thomas Hurrell, (BOOK
         2, PAGE 130).

          4 June 1742 RICHARD HILL & Charles Turnbull, deed from James
         Holman, (BOOK 3, PAGE 550).

         18 March 1758 JOHN HILL, deed from William Pryor (BOOK 7,
         PAGE 273).

                          HENRICO COUNTY, VIRGINIA

                General Index to Wills, No. 1  1781-1904

                               NONE

                Grantor Index to Deeds 1, 1781- 1876
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          5 September 1785 JAMES HILL & WIFE to Nathaniel Wilkinson,
         (DEED BOOK 2, PAGE 141).

          6 October 1789 BAILEY HILL to Nicholas Vass (DEED BOOK 3,
         PAGE 124).

         10 May 1792 HUGH HILL & wife to Robert Brown's executor (DEED
         BOOK 3, PAGE 624).

          4 April 1796 GIDEON HILL & WIFE to Ryland Ford (DEED BOOK 4,
         PAGE 520).

          1 January 1798 STEPHEN HILL to R. & E. Hewett, Power of

         Attorney, (DEED BOOK 5, PAGE 389).

                  Grantee Index To Deeds, # 1, 1781-1876

         4 June 1792 HUGH HILL from Andrew Serpen (DEED BOOK 4, PAGE
         19).

         1 September 1794 GIDEON HILL, etal, from Jno. Pettus & wife
         (DEED BOOK 4, PAGE 441).R

         1 February 1796 HUGH HILL from George Kersee, mortgage, (DEED
         BOOK 4, PAGE 703).

         8 October 1805 SAMUEL HILL from Jno. Ellis & wife (DEED BOOK
         7, PAGE 304).

                             LOUDOUN COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         Index to Wills, 1757-1949 (current index) & (old index)- too
         late??

         Will of Burr W. Harrison is Will Book 2Q, Page 18.

                             POWHATAN COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         General Index to Wills, #1, 1777-1947 (Earliest Hill was in
         1857).

         2 January 1782 JAMES HILL sold 200 acres to William Trabue of
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         Chesterfield County for 300 lbs in specie. The land was
         purchased by Hill from John Fowler (DEED BOOK 1, PAGE 179).

         20 February 1783 JAMES HILL sold 6 acres on Swift Creek to
         Daniel Trabue for 100 lbs current money. It was part of the
         land purchased by Hill from John Fowler. (DEED BOOK 1, PAGE
         193).

         23 August 1783 JAMES HILL and ANN, his wife, sold 175 acres
         to Henry Skipworth of Cumberland County for 350 lbs current
         money. Land was adjacent to Henry Randolph, Charles Hatcher
         and said Skipworth. (DEED BOOK 1, PAGE 213).

                         ESSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA ADDENDA

         16 May 1724 Thomas Blanton of South Farnham Parish sold 47
         acres to JANE HILL, widow, during her lifetime and then to
         her son, JOHN HILL, part of a tract his brother, John
         Blanton, formerly sold to her deceased husband RICHARD HILL.
         Wits: Thomas Graves, Phillip Sanders. (DEED BOOK 17, PAGES
         310-313).

         16 February 1730 LEONARD HILL was named guardian of KATHERINE
         HILL (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 14).

         14 June 1732 RICHARD HILL, "Pract-r in Physick," of Ann
         Arundel County, Maryland, named Col. William Beverley his
         attorney to sue James Steward, alias James Booth, for a debt
         of eleven pounds, three shilling and seven pence. Wits: Tho.
         Watkins, Edward Roycroft. (DEED BOOK 19, PAGES 304-305).

         21 April 1823 Will of THOMAS HILL proved this date, wrote 6
         January 1823. Mentioned but did not name his wife; sons
         Joseph P. Hill, William H. Hill, and Ransdell Hill. The later
         was to receive nothing because "he conducts himself so bad."
         Exec= son William Hill, Wits: W. Fisher, Humphry Hill. (WILL
         BOOK 19, PAGES 372-373).

                        ESSEX COUNTY VIRGINIA

         Source: "Obtained by Mrs. Margaret L. Hill, genealogist who
         researched Essex County for me in May of 1988.
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         1.    10 September 1703   Leonard Hill was in Old
         Rappahannock County by this date, when he was one of the
         persons who inventoried the estate of James Sargeant (Wills &
         Deeds, Book 11, Page 92). Leonard had a wonderful habit of
         dating each of his signatures.

         2.    27 April 1705   Leonard Hill is described as a merchant
         of (OLD) Rappahannock County (Wills & Deeds, Book 14, page
         363).

         3.    31 December 1723  Deed, Leonard Hill, South Farnham
         Parish, to Reuben Welch for 250 acres at 80 pounds. (Deed
         Book 17, Pages 341-343).

         4.    20 February 1727/28  Will of HENRY HILL, St Mary's
         Parish, proved; written 15 March 1726/27. Mentions wife Anne;
         son, Richard; daughter Elizabeth. Both children are under 20
         years of age. Witnesses: Robert Thomas, Gabrill Tombs,
         Francis Wilkin (WILL BOOK 4, Page 259).

         5.    21 January 1728/29  WILL of Leonard Hill proved;
         written 12 May 1728. Legatees are daughters, Ann Tunstall,
         Betty Hill, Catherine Hill (latter two under 18 yrs. of age);
         son, Leonard Hill; godson John Covington. Witnesses: Stephen
         Drewer, William Allen, George Berrick. (WILL BOOK 4, Page
         284).         (Wife was widow (Elizabeth?) Bryant and this is
         the first Leonard Hill).

         Following sent by Mrs. Summers of Bend, Oregon...
         From Wm & Mary Quarterly, Vol. 16, Series 2, 1936 on Page 490
              Leonard Hill  May 1728  Jan. 1728/29
                   dau. Ann Tunstall
                   dau. Betty
                   dau. Catherine
                   son Leonard *** (see # 7? )
                   godson John Covington. Executor: Leonard Hill.

                   Witnesses: Stephen Drower, William (x) Allen,
                   George Berrick. Executors Bond: Leonard Hill,
                   Richard Taylor Jr., Gent., and John Micou.

         6.    13 June 1729  Deed, Leonard Hill, Gentleman, South
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         Farnham Parish, to Eleanor Medley for 50 acres. (DEED BOOK
         19, Pages 33-35).

         7.    6 March 1734  WILL of Leonard Hill proved; written 14
         June 1733. Mentions wife, but does not name her; sons:
         Leonard and Thomas; daughter, Mary (under 21 yrs. of age);
         sisters Ann Tunstall, Catherine Price, Betty Hill; brother:
         John Bryant.  Son Leonard to receive 300 acres, part of the
         tract known as "Bridgers North." Son Thomas to receive part
         of "Bridgers North" that is part of Dragon Swamp. Mary to
         receive 100 pounds. (WILL BOOK 5, Page 199-200).  (This is
         the second Leonard Hill, son of the first Leonard Hill).

         Following sent by Mrs. Summers of Bend, Oregon...
         COL. LEONARD HILL June 1733   March 19, 1733/34
              1. Son Leonard Hill ***   (see # 14).

              2. Son Thomas Hill 172- to 1765 m. Elinor Raoy (Sept
                    1758)

                    i. Son Thomas Hill m. 1787 in King George County
                       to Ann Thornton, dau. of William Thornton.

                   ii. Dau. Ann Hill m. 1st Henry Micou, Caroline Co.,
                       Va. son of John Micou & Catherine Walker.

                  iii. Dau. Mary Elinor Hill (176?-1797) m. 1781 to
                       Col. Larkin Smith (ca.1757-1813) Speaker of Va.
                       House of Delegates.

              3. Dau. Mary Hill (under 21)

              WIFE of THIS LEONARD HILL was MARY MICOU, daughter of
              Dr. Paul Micou. She married 2nd time to Joshua Fry of
              Albemarle County Virginia before April 1736.  More
              information on Paul Micou with several mentioning of
              Hills from Wm. & Mary Quarterly, Vol. 16, Series 2,
              1936, page 241-246, 490-492, 653-667; The Virginia
              Genealogist, Vol. 4, pages 153-157.

         8.    19 May 1741  Deed of Gift, Barbary Hill from her
         father, John Watkins of South Farnham Parish. (DEED BOOK 22,
         Page 236).  (See additional comments at end of this article)

         9.    17 September 1745  LEASE, James Hill of Albemarle
         County and his wife Ann, to John Clondas of Essex County.
         (Deed Book 23, Pages 303-305).

         10.   19 October 1756  Will of Leonard Hill, South Farnham
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         Parish, proved; written 29 March 1756. Mentions brother,
         Thomas Hill; wife (unnamed); daughters: Mary and Elizabeth
         (under 18 yrs.) Executors: Friend Richard Tunstall, Francis
         Smith, John Clements, Gentleman. Wits: John Clements, Richard
         Johnson, Samuel Johnson. (WILL BOOK 10, Pages 102-103).
         (This is the third Leonard Hill, son of Leonard Hill 2 and
         grandson of the first Leonard Hill).

         11.   14 May 1759  DEED, Thomas Hill, Gentleman, Essex
         County, to Mary and Elizabeth Hill, daughters and legatees of
         Leonard Hill, deceased, for 300 acres adjacent Dragon Quarter
         at 150 pounds. (DEED BOOK 28, Pages 154-155).

         12.   21 June 1764 DEED, Richard Hill Jr., planter, South
         Farnham Parish, and his wife Mary, to John Cassell of St.
         Anne's Parish, 40 acres at 30 pounds. Wits: Leonard Hill,
         Leonard Hill Jr., Alexander Roane. (DEED BOOK 29, Page 336).

         13.   20 August 1764 Will of Richard Hill proved; written 29
         July 1764. Legatees are sister Mary Patterson; half-sister
         Ann Sanders; nephew Richard Hill, son of brother John Hill;
         Sarah Graves, daughter of Elizabeth & Richard Graves. Brother
         Leonard Hill is to be executor. Wits: Leonard Sale, James
         Sullivan, Ann Rennolds. (WILL BOOK 12, Pages 138-139).
         COMPLETE WILL AT END OF DOCUMENT.

         14.   16 September 1776  WILL of Leonard Hill of St. Anne's
         Parish, proved; written on 8th September 1775. Mentions wife,
         Sarah; daughters Suca & Molly; Sons: William and Thomas.
         Executors: (sons) William and Thomas. Wits: William Watkins,
         Daniel Sullivan, Jesse Hill. (WILL BOOK 13, Pages 47-48).

         This provided by Mrs. Summers of Bend, Oregon....

         ESSEX COUNTY, VA.  made 8th September 1775 LEONARD HILL,
         perfect sense & memory.  Names daughter Luca Hill: 1 Negro
         girl, Nan, a Negro boy named Robbin, 1 feather bed &
         furniture of 8 pounds value, 1 pewter dish, 6 plates.

         Son William Hill: 1 Negro boy Toby, 1 Negro girl, Pat, 1 bed
         & furniture of 8 pounds value, 1 pewter dish, 6 plates.

         Son Thomas Hill:  1 Negro boy Phill, 1 Negro girl Aggie, 1
         bed and furniture of 8 pounds value, 1 pewter dish and 6
         plates.

         Dau. Molly Hill: 1 Negro boy named Sippio & 1 Negro girl
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         named Amy, 1 bed and furniture, 1 dish, 6 plates.

         Wife SARAH HILL remainder of estate real & personal. Her
         decease land is to be divided between two sons. Son William
         to pay sister Luca 1/2 value of his part of land. Thomas to
         pay sister Molly 1/2 of his part of land. Four children share
         equal in his estate. Witnesses: William Watkins, Daniel

         Sullivan & JESSE HILL.

         Filed Essex County in Tappahannock on 16 September 1776.
         At above mentioned court 15 November 1784, Thomas Hill, an
         Executor came into Court and qualified as such by taking
         oath.

         15.   17 February 1777  WILL of John Hill, South Farnham
         Parish, proved; written 3 August 1776. Mentions wife,
         Barbary, all estate real & personal; son: Richard, all my
         part of land formally belonged to my brother Richard Hill;
         son Leonard Hill, the land and plantation where I now dwell;
         son Jesse Hill, land & plantation I bought of William
         Watkins; daughter Lucy Hill, 15 pounds paid from estate;
         Richard & Leonard Hill Still, Desire that their mother have
         liberty to still her liquor freely. The Remainder of estate
         sold: 20 pounds to daughter Lucy Hill then balance of estate
         to be divided equally between the four children. Wife, and
         sons Richard & Leonard to be executors.  Wits: William Webb,
         Benjamin Fisher, Thomas Hill, (WILL BOOK 13, Pages 61-63).

         Note: Barbary was married to John Hill on 26th January
         1740/41; she was the daughter of John Watkins (DEED BOOK 22,
         Page 236).  (See Number 8 above and *** at end of this
         article).

         ***Reference to article number 8 above...and number 15
         above...This John Hill was the son of Richard Hill and Jane,
         supposedly to be Jane Maguffey. John Hill married Barbara
         Watkins, daughter of John Watkins. RICHARD HILL, brother of
         John Hill, died in 1764.  His will is listed below.

         16.    November 1784 Division of Estate of Leonard Hill among
         his children: William Hill, Thomas Hill, Susanna Fisher (wife
         of Benjamin Fisher), Molly HALL (wife of John). Recorded 19



file:///C|/Users/Owner/Documents/Genie/genieTexts/VA033.TXT[7/20/2010 9:22:12 PM]

         September 1785. (WILL BOOK 13, Pages 518).

         17.    15 November 1784  Will of Richard Hill; proved;
         written 24 September 1784, mentions wife, Mary; sons Humphry,
         Robert (under 21 yrs.), Lewis, John and Richard; daughters:
         Elizabeth, Mary Ann, Pheby & Pegey (Peggy). Son Richard to be
         maintained for his lifetime. The widow to be executrix. (WILL
         BOOK 13, page 450).

         18.    11 February 1789 DEED, Leonard Hill and Elizabeth, his
         wife, to William Fisher, for 94 acres in South Farnham Parish
         for 125 pounds. Wits: William Webb, William C. Fogg, Thomas
         Hill, Richard Covington, William Hill. (DEED BOOK 33, Pages
         215-216).

         19.    28 December 1798 Division of Estate of Leonard Hill;
         to widow, Sarah, now the wife of Mr. Campbell, to daughters,
         Mary Browne and Elizabeth Dunlop, wife of James Dunlop. (WILL
         BOOK 15, Page 467).

         Following provided by Mrs. Summers of Bend, Oregon...
         Leonard Hill married 4 October 1752, and had brother Thomas
         Hill.  Wife was SARAH died 1798 leaving large estate. She
         married 2nd time to James Campbell, they had a son Thacker
         Campbell. Sarah was daughter of Col. Edwin Thacker of
         Middlesex County, Virginia and wife Elizabeth (Stith?).

              1.  Dau. Mary Hill married on June 8th 1775 to Bennett
                  Browne, son of Charles & Priscilla (Brooks) Browne.
              2.  Dau. Elizabeth Hill married James Dunlap, son of
                  William Dunlap of Glasgow, Scotland..
                  Executors: Friends Richard Tunstall, Francis Smith &
                  John Clements.
                  Witnesses: John Clements Jr., Richard Johnson,
                  Samuel Johnson.
                  Executors Bond: R. Tunstall, Jno. Clements, William
                  Daingerfield, Obediah Marriott.

         (NOTE BY R. HILL...From the above, it is apparent that there
         were three (3) generations of a Hill Family with the given
         names of LEONARD HILL, who was the father, son and grandson.
         The first Leonard Hill married a widow Bryant and made a will
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         in Essex County on 12 May 1728, proved on 21 January 1728/29.

         The second Leonard Hill (son of Leonard) married Mary Micou
         and made a will on 14 June 1733, proved 19 March 1733/34.

         The Third Leonard Hill (son of Leonard, grandson of Leonard
         Hill) married on 4th October 1752 to to Sarah Thacker, Will
         dated 29 March 1756, proved 19 October 1756).

         20.    16 April 1804 WILL of William Hill proved; written 23
         February 1804. Mentions wife Clarissa; daughters: Suckey
         Waller Hill and Clarissa Hill, both under age; brother:
         Thomas Hill. Wits: William Gatewood, Edmund Jones, Charles
         Latham. (WILL BOOK 16, pages 274-276).

         WILL BOOK 12, PAGES 138-139 ESSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA.

                         WILL OF RICHARD HILL
               (He was son of Richard Hill & Jane Maguffey)

         In the name of God Amen, I RICHARD HILL being in good health
         of body and of a sound and perfect mind and memory, praised
         be the almighty God for it, do make and ordain this my
         present last will and testament. 1st...I give to my sister
         Mary Patterson and her heirs, executors & administrators, the
         sum of forty pounds current money then I give my half-sister
         Ann Sanders fifty shillings current money, then I give unto
         Sarah Graves, the daughter of Richard Graves & his wife
         Elizabeth, fifty shillings current money, more all to be
         levied out of my Estate. Then I give to RICHARD HILL the son

         of my brother JOHN HILL my horse bridel and saddle and gun
         and half----puter plates then I give the half of my land to
         my brother JOHN HILL and the other half to my brother LEONARD
         HILL, their heirs, executors & administrators, to be divided
         as John and Leonard can agree and if their is any more estate
         devide (divide) it likewise, but do not sell my waring aparel
         but give it to my relations, especially (sic) to my name sake
         I leave JOHN HILL & LEONARD HILL my executors-as Witness my
         hand and seal this 29th day of July 1764.
                                      (signed by) RICHARD HILL
         Signed sealed and Delivered in
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         the presence of
         Leonard Sale
         James Sullivan
         Ann Rennolds

         At a court held for Essex County at Tappahannock on the 20th
         day of August 1764, this last will & testament was presented
         into Court and sworn to by the Executors therein named,
         proved by Leonard sale and James Sullivan, two of the
         Witnesses, thereto and ordered to be recorded.
                                                  Test.
                                                  John Lee Jr.
                                                  Clerk

         SOURCE OF FOLLOWING: MRS. SUMMERS OF BEND, OREGON.

               (Bold print my own comments. R. Hill).

         NOTE: Based on the above information it is obvious that
         RICHARD HILL & wife JANE MAGUFFEY were the parents of JOHN
         HILL, LEONARD HILL, RICHARD HILL, MARY HILL (m. Patterson).

         ESSEX COUNTY VIRGINIA, from William & Mary Quarterly, Vol.
         16, Series 16, Page 667: Shows Thomas Blanton sells land to
         JANE (HILL), the widow of RICHARD HILL for life and at her
         decease to her son JOHN "all that his part" containing 47
         acres which his brother, John Blanton sold to RICHARD HILL,
         deceased in 1719.
         ___________________________________________________________

         ***********************************************************
         THE FOLLOWING FROM "EDWARD PLEASANT'S VALENTINE PAPERS"
         provided by Ralph H. Wills:

         VOL. 1, PAGE 46 AMHERST COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Taliferro
         (Toliver) Hill was security for the marriage of Ludwell Bacon
         and Nancy Long. December 12th, 1799, consent of Lawrence
         Long.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1475 VIRGINIA LAND OFFICE RECORDS: William
         Randolph, Gentleman, patented 378 acres in Lunenburg County,
         on North side of Stanton River, adjoining Hill's upper line.
         April 5th 1748.



file:///C|/Users/Owner/Documents/Genie/genieTexts/VA033.TXT[7/20/2010 9:22:12 PM]

         VOL. 4, PAGE 2172 HANOVER COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Thomas
         Smith of Louisa County, a deed from Richard Henson, Charles
         Leemans and Obediah Farmer of Hanover County, 48 acres in
         Hanover County, adjoining Fontaine & Hill, November 2nd,
         1784.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1730 ST PAUL'S VESTRY BOOK: "Ordered into one
         precinct for processioning the lands of Widow Hill and
         others, August 22nd, 1727, and again on September 11th 1739
         and again on September 18th 1743."

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1968 HENRICO COUNTY RECORDS: Annie, wife of
         James Hill relinquishes her dower rights in a sale of James
         Hill to John Woodson. April 1st 1691 in the same county
         (Henrico).

         VOL. 1, PAGE 405 KING WILLIAM COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Baylor
         Hill owned lands adjoining Thomas Tignor, Reuben Atkinam,
         Isaac Dabney & wife Susannah in King William County. February
         5th 1805.  William Dabney Jr. was witness to the indenture
         between Robert Pollard, Robert Hill, Temple Elliott and John
         Fox.  Recorded September 3rd 1799.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 492 AMELIA COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Alexander
         Gray was executor of Charles Hill, deceased, plaintiff,
         against Duncombe Hammond. (Order Book, 1735-46, Page 224).

         VOL. 2, PAGE 683 SURRY COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: George Jordan
         by petition to the Adjutant General Assembly hath most humbly
         desired (that in regards of certaine scandalous reports
         spread abroad in the colony concerning his marriage with
         Eliza Coates sometimes the supposed wife of Richard Hill),
         That this Assembly would take a view and examine the ground
         and reasons where upon the said marriage was celebrated
         between them, the aforesaid persons which having beene read
         and Sufftyle seamed by the Assembly and the reasons for the
         marriage proved top be Sufftyle just both according to the
         common Law concill Law of England and the whole house sufflye
         satisfied concerning the lawfulnesse of the same, these are
         therefore according to their opinion and Judgement of the
         said Grand Assembly to certifie the same to whom soever it
         shall or may concerne, And hereby to Eliza Coates to be
         lawful and just...therein satisfied by the subscriptions of
         (men) learned in the law who have stated and resolved the
         case as under their hands to us approved. March 31, 1651. Ed.
         Hill, Speaker. The whole contents of the writing is recorded
         by order. Thomas Norwood, Clerk of the Assembly, Recorded
         20th April 1655.

         PAGE 684 George Jordan, At a Quarter Court held at James City
         March 26, 1655-Present Richard Bennett Esq., Governor, Col.
         William Claiborne, Col. Thomas Pettus, Col. Badg. Freeman,
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         Col. William Taylor Esq. and Mr. Edward Diggsh, This day

         Capt. George Jordan complained that certain persons had much
         scandalized him in his marriage with Mrs. Eliza Coates
         although the said marriage was lawful both by the laws of God
         and Man and to prove the same exhibited certain papers
         stating the case and many depositions and other proofs to
         conforme the case to be soe as he alleged as namelye, that
         the said Eliza Coates was formerly married to one Daniel
         Coates, and that the said Daniel Coates was sueing when she
         married and suid with Richard Hill, and that therefore the
         said marriage with Hill was in its selfe void and null, and
         that the said Daniel deceased on the 13th April last in
         Ireland whereupon it was lawful for the said Eliza to marrye
         whom she pleased and the said Hill...Eliza which he also did
         whereupon the Court having the advise alsoe of certain
         devines doe concure as the case is soe stated that he the
         said Captain George Jordan's marriage is....with the said
         Eliza Coates is warrantable and lawful both by Civil law and
         common law of England and so certified under the hands of
         emmenent persons. Recorded April 20th 1655. Vera Conia, Wm.
         Claiborne, Sec'y.

         PAGE 685 Richard Hill witness a contract between Arthur
         Jordan, Planter, of Southwark Parish, Surry County, and
         Robert Stanton of same county, clerk. Recorded January 1st,
         1655.

         VOL. 2, PAGES 1065 HENRICO COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS:
         Edward Hill gave power of attorney to John Stith (Henrico
         Records 1677-1692, P. 32), witnessed by John Pleasants.

         PAGE 1072 HENRICO COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Edward Hill Esq.,
         member of the Council, in the case of John Pleasants refusing
         to take the oath proscribed by Parliament as a Burgess, in
         March 1692.

         VOL. 3 PAGE 1323 CHESTERFIELD COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Edward
         Hill owned land in this county. October 21st 1772.

                PAGE 1366 Edward Hill and others of Charles City
         County bought land of Richard Randolph of Henrico County.
         April 7th 1718.
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         VOL. 3 PAGE 374 HENRICO COUNTY RECORDS: Henry Randolph of
         Henrico County, to James Hill, Edward Hill and John Hill,
         sons of JAMES HILL, deceased, 5 shill. sterling. Any right,
         title, interest etc. which said Randolph has in and to 252
         acres in Bristol Parish, Henrico County, on N side of Swift
         Creek and bounded? as in a deed made by Henry Randolph,
         father of the aforesaid Henry Randolph, by James Hill, father
         of the aforesaid Hills, dated June 18th 1692 and proved in
         Henrico County Court June 1st 1693.

         VOL.3  PAGE 1407 HENRICO COUNTY RECORDS: Edward Hill and
         others witnessed the conveyance of land from Thomas Webb,

         Gentleman, of the city of Gloucester in Great Britain to
         William Randolph, Gentleman, to lands in Henrico Co., Colony
         of Virginia.  September 28th 1716.

         VOL.3  PAGE 1415 HENRICO COUNTY: Henry Randolph Acknowledges
         deed dated April 3rd 1721 to James, Edward & John Hill, Court
         of April 1721.

         VOL 3. PAGE 1427 Henry Randolph acknowledges deed to Edward
         Hill, recorded court of April 7th 1742.

         VOL. 4, PAGE 2082 Edward Hill is ordered to pay John
         Valentine 50# tobacco for attending court two days as a
         witness for him VS Gunn. April 5th 1765.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 861 Richard Moseley, admr. of Richard Scruggs,
         deceased, plaintiff VS Elizabeth Hill, defendant, Judgement
         for plaintiff. May Court 1723.

         VOL.3, PAGE 1539 MIDDLESEX COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: William
         Scott VS Frederick Hill, dismissed, August 1794.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 559 SURRY COUNTY RECORDS: William Gray, planter,
         of Southwark Parish, Surry County and Eliza his wife, deed to
         Samuel Plow, planter, same county and parish, 400 acres in
         the upper parish of Surry recently purchased by Henry Hill.

         VOL. 1(?) PAGE 48 CHESTERFIELD COUNTY RECORDS: Herbert Hill
         was security in the marriage of Thomas M. Bacon and Eliza R.
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         Gee; John Gee gives consent. June 1st 1813.

         VOL.2, PAGE 637 BRUNSWICK COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Herbert
         Hill bondsman in the marriage of Jane Jordan and Thomas H.
         Merideth, October 8th 1812, Consent of W. Griggs.

         VOL. 4, PAGE 2099 MIDDLESEX COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Jacob
         Valentine, defendant VS John Batchelder, plaintiff in
         Chancery. Answer filed by consent of parties and all matters
         in differences in this suit are referred to Humphry Hill and
         others, Gentlemen, to state the accounts between the parties
         and report to the Court in order to make a final decree.
         December 2, 1769.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 45 AMELIA COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Richard C.
         Bacon & Co., assignee of John Worsham, assignee of John
         Morris, plaintiff VS James Hill, defendant in a debt. William
         Leigh, bondsman for Hill. Case continued, November 1812.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 53 John Bacon's deed to his son Nathaniel is
         proved by the oaths of James Hill and George Wilkinson, two
         of the witnesses thereto and ordered to be recorded.  October
         4, 1742.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 1128 AMELIA COUNTY RECORDS ??: James Hill and

         Robert Pleasants Jr. Witnessed will of John Pleasants Sr. of
         Henrico County. August 12, 1771.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1393 HENRICO COUNTY RECORDS: Henry Randolph of
         Bristol Parish, Henrico County, Gentleman, to James Hill, of
         same parish and county, planter: 22 pounds sterling, 252
         acres, part of a greater quantity granted said Randolph by
         patent dated April 1691, in County and parish aforesaid, on
         North side of Swift Creek: Agrees for the relinquishment of
         his wife's dower: Received June 1, 1693: Proved by ye oaths
         of ye witnesses subscribed yt? ye same was signed, sealed and
         Delivered by Capt. Randolph (now deceased) June ye first
         1693: I doe acknowledge to have received of James Hill Seven
         Pounds ten shillings sterling, it being the last payment
         which he was to pay for and in consideration of about 250
         acres of land which the said Hill bought of my Loving Husband
         Capt. Hen. Randolph I say received pr me Sarah Randolph:
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         Received (at request of James Hill) June 1, 1693.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1404 May 4, 1711 James Hill owned land adjoining
         Henry Randolph, in Bristol Parish, Henrico County.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1465 Henry Randolph and Lucy his wife of
         Chesterfield County, deed to Skipwith of Cumberland County,
         110 acres in Powhatan County, land purchased by said Skipwith
         of James Hill, it being the most easterly part of a tract
         late the property of Britt Randolph of the Island of Great
         Britain, deceased, September 16, 1793.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1787 James Hill, with a party, searching for
         stolen hogs in Henrico County, April 8, 1691.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 420 LOUISA COUNTY RECORDS: Petition of John Hill
         for an acre of land at Horse Shoe Neck on the South (side) of
         Anna River, this county, belonging to Isaac Dabney (an infant
         under age 2 yrs. of age) and William Coles and Lucy his wife
         of King William County for the use of a water mill, August
         27, 1745.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 648 HENRICO COUNTY: John Hill and others
         security for a certificate in obtaining letters of
         administration to Abraham Baley, John Redford Jr., Thomas
         Jordan and John Burton in administering the estate of Miss
         Judith Cocke, deceased, January 3, 1742.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1539 MIDDLESEX COUNTY: Nancy Scott, orphan of
         Delphais Scott, deceased, with the approbation of the Court,
         made choice of John Hill as her guardian. John Burton,
         Secretary. May 1794.

         William Hill and others appraised the estate of Delphais
         Scott May 1794. On motion of John Hill ordered that Starge
         Davis, John Sutton, Dudley Vaughan and John Hodges settle the
         account of John Jackson, administrator of Delphais Scott,

         deceased, estate and also the account of said Jackson's
         guardianship of the estate of Nancy Scott, orphan of said
         Scott, October 1794.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1750 Ordered processioned in one precinct, lands
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         of John Hill and others, November 12, 1779.

         VOL. 4, PAGE 2170 GOOCHLAND COUNTY: January 15, 1754 John
         Hill of Hanover County, planter, and Tabitha his wife, to
         Francis Smith of Hanover County, Gentleman, 101 acres in
         Goochland County.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 156 SURRY COUNTY: Eliza Ballard, executrix of
         John Ballard, deceased, merchant, VS Berthia Morris,
         administratrix of Martha Hill, deceased, in a debt, July 21,
         1752.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 729 SURRY CO.?: Memorial to Robert Jordan,
         Philadelphia: In 1731 Robert Jordan married (2) Mary, widow
         of Richard Hill, probably in Virginia. Jordan was a Quaker
         minister of Philadelphia and Nansemond County, Virginia, born
         October 27, 1692.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 71 KING WILLIAM COUNTY: John Bacon a witness to
         a paper signed by Matthew Hill (nature of document can not be
         determined, only fragment present).

         VOL. 2, PAGE 774 YORK COUNTY: Matthew Hill and others
         appraised the estate of Matthew Langstone, deceased, May 8th,
         1741.

         VOL. 1, PAGE 576 SURRY COUNTY VIRGINIA RECORDS: Michael Hill
         and John Hill proved the will of John Gray, deceased,
         November 9th, 1708.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 622 HENRICO COUNTY: Nathan Hill and others
         witnessed the will of Katherine Isham of Henrico County.
         October 1st, 1686.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 596 ISLE OF WIGHT COUNTY: Present at Court (of)
         July 7th, 1671, Major Nicholas Hill.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 597 George Hardy, Elizabeth (x) Smith and Ralph
         (x) Hill witnessed the nuncupative will of William Taylor of
         London, merchant, October 24th, 1677.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 1024 John Pleasants Jr., storekeeper for the
         plaintiffs in the suit of Richard Hill & Alex. Mackie VS.
         Milner Redford. Judgement for plaintiffs, October 6th, 1746.

         VOL. 2, PAGE 718 VIRGINIA LAND OFFICE: Richard Hill owned
         land in Isle of Wight County on South side Fountain Creek,
         adjoining that of River Jordan.
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         VOL. 1, PAGE 176 MIDDLESEX COUNTY: William Hill witnessed
         will of William Jackson Sr., Parish of Christ Church,
         Middlesex, March 25th, 1793.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1537 William Hill and others made inventory of
         estate of Delphais Scott, June 25th 1784.

         VOL. 3, PAGE 1540 William Hill and John Ross Sr.  security
         for the marriage of Sally Scott to John Ross Jr.

          "   "   "    "     Nancy Scott married John Hill in 1794.
         William Hill, security for Sally Scott and James Dunley, bond
         000 pounds for the administration of the estate of Delphias
         Scott.

                         ________________________

             FOLLOWING FROM "EARLY VIRGINIA MARRIAGES" BY CROZIER

                         AMELIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         James Hill    married    Ann Booker on June 27th 1763.
         James Hill    married    Frances Booker on January 28th 1781.
         Ann Hill      married    Robert Eggleston in April 1806.

                         SUSSEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         Sarah Hill (of Richard) m. William Ruffin on April 9th 1762.
         Hannah Hill married Ephraim Parham on November 15th 1764.
         Ann Hill (widow) married John Avery on May 30th 1766.

                          AUGUSTA COUNTY, VIRGINIA (Groom Only)

         James Hill   married on March 25th  1762 to ??????

                          MIDDLESEX COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         Leonard Hill  married  Sarah Thacker on October 4th, 1752.
         Needles Hill  married  Letitia Morgan on October 4th 1758.

                          LANCASTER COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         John Hill (of Northumberland?) m. Elizabeth Martin on January
         9th, 1733.

                          SURRY COUNTY, VIRGINIA
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         Nancy Hill   married   Stephen Collier on July 13th, 1779.

                          YORK COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         Lydia Hill  married   James Dudley on March 18th, 1773.
         Mary Hill (widow) m.  Edmond Monday on April 19th, 1786.
         Elizabeth Hill    m.  George Williams on May 9th, 1786.

         James Hill Jr.    m.  Sally Graves on December 21st, 1787.

                          FAUQUIER COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         Sarah Hill    married   William Tippet on January 14th, 1765.
         James Hill    married   Sarah Leach on February 19th 1788.

                          WESTMORELAND COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         Thomas Hill   married   Martha Pierce on June 7th, 1787.
         George Hill   married   Roseannah Brinnon on March 6th, 1788,
                                 daughter of Roseannah.
         Elizabeth Hill married  James Nash on September 7th, 1812,
                                 daughter of John & Ellander.
         Mary Hill    married    Thomas Jenkins on August 10th, 1813.

                            ---------------------------

         MISCELLANEOUS DATA INCLUDING ABSTRACTED WILLS IN DIFFERENT
         COUNTIES OF VIRGINIA BELONGING TO THE HILL FAMILIES, SUPPLIED
         BY MRS.  MARGARET L.  HILL (GENEALOGIST) WHO WAS RESEARCHING
         FOR ME IN AUGUST 1988.

                             CUMBERLAND COUNTY
         2 September 1772 Isaac Hill was in Cumberland County by this
         date, when he and Ann Hill, Henry & Winifred Tapscott sold
         200 acres on both sides of Carter's Ferry Road and on both
         sides of the church road crossing the ferry road to Thomas
         Mountaque. It was adjacent to the lands of Isaac Hill bought
         from William Clarke. Recorded 28 September 1772. Wits: James
         Daniel, _______? Carrington, George Tapscott, William C.
         Hill, Field Robinson, Jno. Overton. (DEED BOOK 5, PAGES 103-
         104).

         1772-1790  Numerous deeds for Isaac Hill. He moved to
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         Buckingham County, Virginia and died in Franklin County
         Virginia.

         22 February 1773 Will of Joseph Hill, Littleton Parish,
         proved this date. Wrote 29 November 1772. Wife, Hannah. Sons:
         Thomas (under 21) and William (under 14). inherited land in
         Bedford County. Son Joseph (under 14) inherited land "I now
         live on." Daughters Elizabeth and Joyce were both under 21.
         Brother, John Hill, inherited land in Halifax County. Exec:
         Hannah. Wits: Joseph Starkey, John Burton, Stephen Woodson.
         (WILL BOOK 2, PAGE 87).

         25 October 1773 Will of Thomas Hill proved this date. Wrote 6
         October 1770. Wife's name appears to be Barcheway. Mentions
         sons: John, Dennett, Thomas, William, Joseph, James;
         daughters, Sarah, Mary Ann. Exec: Dennett Hill. Wits: John
         Markey, Joseph Markey, John Spearman. (WILL BOOK 2, PAGE 110-
         111). (If Dennett Hill could be a mistaken spelling for Denny
         Hill, this could be a Northumberland County Family). Note by

         R. Hill: This Dennett Hill may be the same one found down
         in South Carolina.

         21 February 1775 Marriage bond, Joanna Hill, widow, and
         Daniel Allen (Marriage Records; 1749-1840, Cumberland County,
         Virginia; 1969).

         26 November 1781 Will of Thomas Hill proved this date. Wrote
         27 March 1779. Left his share of the estate of his father,
         Joseph Hill, deceased, to his brothers; William & Joseph
         Hill. Both of whom were under 21 yrs of age. Exec: his father
         in law, Daniel Allen. Wits: Drury Lacy, Moses Allen. (WILL
         BOOK 2, PAGE 282).

         24 June 1782 Will of Thomas Suggett Hill proved this date.
         Wrote 21 November 1781. Mentioned his grandson Thomas Hobson
         Hill, who was under 21. Mentioned wife Betty, and "her
         daughter Sarah, the wife of Isaac Hill. (In a codicil, Sarah
         is called "daughter in law," but the exact definition of all
         the "in law" terms is open for debate. It is possible, of
         course, that Isaac was actually his son and married the
         daughter of his 2nd wife). Children: Frances, Catey, Jesse,
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         Thomas, John and Betsy, are all under 21. The implication is
         that Betty is the 2nd wife. Wits: William Edwards, Andrew
         Edwards, William Hammontree. (WILL BOOK 2, PAGES 294-295).

         27 January 1789 Will of William Costelo Hill, of Littleton
         Parish, proved this date. Wrote 20 February 1788. Mentioned
         his wife Susanna; four children under 21; Ann Webb Hill,
         William Costelo Hill (JR.), Hall Chiswell Hill, Willoughby
         Suggett Hill. (These names are all right out of
         Northumberland and Essex Counties of Virginia. William
         Costelo Hill was the son of Costelo Hill, who died in 1750,
         in Northumberland County, Virginia).  He left land to Isaac &
         Sarah Hill, Thomas Suggett Hill (The 2nd), Costelo and Barber
         Hill. Exec: the widow, Isaac Hill & ____? Gentry, Robert
         Anderson. Wits: Dangerfd. P. Harmon, Billy Tapscott, Edney
         Tapscott, Charles Allen Merryman, Cynthis H. Merryman. (WILL
         BOOK 2, PAGES 444-445).   Note: The Tapscotts and Merrymans
         were from Lancaster/Northumberland County areas).

         23 February 1789 Marriage Bond, Jesse Hill & Molly Scruggs,
         daughter of Tabitha Scruggs (Elliott).

         18 February 1806 Marriage Bond, John Hill & Sarah Fleming
         Bondurant (Elliott).

         February 1809 Will of Thomas Hill proved this date; wrote
         30th January 1809. This is a nuncupative will, told to
         William Randolph. The estate is to provide for his wife and
         children, all unnamed, and for his mother and her "young
         children." Since Major John Hatcher did not compensate Thomas
         for his last wife, he thought Hatcher should contribute

         something to the estate. Also mentioned was a half-brother
         unnamed. Execs: Tom Hobson, John Hatcher, Dr. Newton Ford.
         (WILL BOOK 3, PAGE 417).

         11 March 1834 Marriage Bond, Sarah Hill & Samuel H. Talley.
         John Hatcher Sr., was grandfather of Sarah (Elliott).

         14 June 1787 William C. Hill witnessed a deed from Isaac &
         Sarah Hill to Obadiah Reynolds, 100 acres on Little Groome
         Quarter Creek for 100 lbs. current money. Other witnesses
         were Joel Meggs and John Reynolds. Recorded 22 October 1787.



file:///C|/Users/Owner/Documents/Genie/genieTexts/VA033.TXT[7/20/2010 9:22:12 PM]

         (DEED BOOK 6, PAGE 436).

                          GREENVILLE COUNTY VIRGINIA

         General Index to Wills (1781-1904
         1820- Will, Francis Hill, Will Book 3, Page 155.
         1823- Appraisement, Richard Hill, Will Book 3, Page 310.
         1853-Appraisement, Burwell Hill, Will Book 7, Page 476.

                          PATRICK COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         General Index to Wills, #1, 1791-1949
         March 1824-Will, John Hill Sr. Will Book 2, Page 58.

         General Index To Deeds, Grantors, 1791-1949
         October 1794-Deed, Thomas Hill to Jacob Critz, Deed Book 1,
         Page 324.

                          PITTSYLVANIA COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         General Index to Wills, # 1  1767-1948 No Hills Listed.

         General Index to Deeds, Grantor, 1767-1889
         July 1769- William Hill to Francis Kerby, deed,
                    Book 1, Page 296.
         August 1771-William Hill to David Clarkson, deed,
                    Book 2, Page 236.
         August 1772-William Hill to James Loven, deed,
                    Book 3, Page 71.
         March 1773-Thomas Hill to Jehu Morton, deed,
                    Book 3, Page 159.
         March 1773-Thomas Hill to John Thompson, deed,
                    Book 3, Page 384.
         March 1775-Robert Hill to John Wilkinson, mortgage,
                    Book 4, Page 152.
         March 1775-Swinfield & Martha Hill to Thomas Hill, deed,
                    Book 4, Page 165.
         February 1777-Swinfield Hill nominated officer of county
                    militia, Book 4, Page 293.
         February 1779-Thomas Hill to Amos Hill, deed,
                    Book 12, Page 26.
         February 1799-Thomas Hill to John Hill, deed,
                    Book 12, Page 27.
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         February 1800-Amos Hill to Thomas Hill, deed,
                    Book 12, Page 157.
         Many Hill deeds after 1800.

         GENERAL INDEX TO DEEDS, GRANTEES, 1767-1889 shows no Moses
         Hill.

                        SOUTHAMPTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         20 November 1820 Will of Worrell Hill proved this date.
         Wrote 10 September 1820. Cousin, Green Hill to receive one
         sorrel horse. Rest of estate to be sold and divided equally
         among Benjamin Hill, son of Benjamin; Elizabeth Hill; William
         Hill, son of William. Exec: brother, William Hill. Wits:
         Temperance Case, Mason Hill, Richard Hill. (WILL BOOK 9, PAGE
         36).

         21 March 1821 Will of Martha Hill proved this date. Wrote 24
         June 1820. Entire estate was left to her brother, John A.
         Hill, who was under 21. Exec: friend Patrick Ford. Wits:
         Thomas Gray; John H. Ford, Polly Hasby (?). (WILL BOOK 9,
         PAGE 256).

         19 May 1821 Will of Amey Hill proved this date. Wrote 24
         September 1820. Legatees were sons, Cross & William;
         daughter, Elizabeth Frances, and her son, Benjamin. Wits:
         John Atkinson, James Atkinson. (WILL BOOK 9, PAGE 85).

         17 October 1825 Will of William Hill proved. Wrote 4 August
         1825. Legatees were his wife, Mason; sons Everitt, Harry,
         William. Wits: John Barrett, Jacob Barrett, Richard G.
         Lankford. (WILL BOOK 9, PAGE 285).

                        CHESTERFIELD COUNTY, VIRGINIA

         11 January 1750 Will of James Hill written, no probate date
         given. Mentions wife Ann, sons: James and Godfree Hill;
         daughters, Elizabeth and Frances (two youngest), Susannah,
         Elan Ann, Martha, Mary Alice(?). Exec: wife. Wits: Benjamin
         Lockett, Richard Lockett, Jacob Afhurst (?) (WILL BOOK 1,
         PAGE 23).

            April 1761 Inventory of estate of Godfrey Hill, Dale
         Parish. Will written 21 December 1760, no probate date given.
         Mentioned his wife, Edith; daughters, Nancy and Betty. Execs:
         wife and Henry Hatcher. Wits: Lewis ___?, Henry Baker, Thomas
         Logwood. (WILL BOOK 1, PAGE 383).

         11 August 1772 Inventory & Appraisement of estate of James
         Hill (WILL BOOK 2, PAGE 128).

         31 August 1780 Will of Edward Hill, Dale Parish, Written this
         date. No probate date given. Mentioned his wife, Elizabeth;
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         daughters, Priscilla Hill (under 21), Martha Nunnally,

         Frances Hill; grandson, William Hill, son of Frances; sons in
         laws Thomas Cogbill and his son, Edward, and William Dance
         and his son, Edward. Elizabeth Hill, Thomas Cogbill and Jesse
         Cogbill were to be guardians of Priscilla. Wits: Jesse
         Cogbill, Elizabeth Raiborn, John Cogbill. (WILL BOOK 3, PAGES
         186-289? (186-189?).

         19 January 1789 Inventory & appraisement, estate of John Hill
         Sr. Will written 9th December 1788; no probate date. Stated
         that the children of his first wife have already received
         their full portions. Mentioned Ann Puckett, "my present
         wife," and "the children that I had by her," James Hill
         Puckett, Annie Puckett, Pleasant Hill Puckett, Edward Hill
         Puckett, Prudence Puckett (all under 21). Execs: wife, son
         William, friend Peter Rowlett and Daniel Sbringer. Wits:
         Matthew Sims, Archer Puckett, David Whiteford. (WILL BOOK 4,
         PAGES 184-189).  Note: To me it seems strange that the last
         name of the children is listed as Puckett and not Hill.  This
         suggest that they were born BEFORE John Hill and Ann Puckett
         were married and were probably born out of wedlock, then
         after the death of John Hill's first wife, they (John & Ann)
         married.  Since the two were not married at the time of the
         children's birth, they were given the Surname of Puckett and
         the middle name of Hill.
                                                R. Hill

         10 February 1789 Will of John Hill written, no probate date
         given. Mentioned wife Ann, daughter Polly; son Richard;
         sister Nancy Robertson. Exec: wife, George Martin, John
         Wilkinson. Wits: Peter Rowlett, John Barlow, William Talbott.
         (WILL BOOK 4, PAGES 212-213). (Note: Could this somehow be
         related to the above)?

         After 1800   Exec account, John Hill, (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 38).
         Inventory, William Hill, (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 199).
         Will, Edward Hill, (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 421).
         Inquisition on body of Mary Hill, (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 442).
         Will, Elizabeth Hill, (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 476).
         Inventory, John Hill, (WILL BOOK 5, PAGE 496).
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                            END OF VA.33 DATA.


	Local Disk
	C:\Users\Owner\Documents\Genie\genieTexts\VA033.TXT


